

# REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR ROWAN COUNTY

# Dan Nicholas Park Train

# 2026-016

## **ROWAN COUNTY**

130 West Innes Street Salisbury, NC 28144 704-216-8178

jody.farrow-bennett@rowancountync.gov

Date Issued: Sunday, October 26, 2025

Date Due: Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET.

Administered By: Jody Farrow-Bennett, Purchasing Director

### **NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR**

### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS ROWAN COUNTY

### Dan Nicholas Park Electric Train - Parks & Recreation

Rowan County is solicitating proposals from qualified firms to provide services for design, plans, specifications, cost, and equipment to build two (2) custom electric train Locomotives with three (3) coaches each, installation, warranty and possible ongoing maintenance support with the Dan Nicholas Park amusement attraction equipment and infrastructure located in Rowan County, North Carolina. All proposal submitted must meet or exceed the time frame and the product/service specifications as outlined in this Request for proposal (RFP). The County intends to contract with one applicant to provide the services outlined in this RFP.

Proposals for the Rowan County's Dan Nicholas Park Train will be accepted until Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET at the Rowan County Purchasing Department, 130 West Innes Street, Suite 31, Salisbury, North Carolina 28144. Request documents may be obtained from the County website or by contacting the Rowan County Purchasing Director:

Rowan County Purchasing Department Attn: Jody Farrow-Bennett, Purchasing Director 130 West Innes Street, Suite 31 Salisbury, NC 28144 704-216-8178

Submission of a proposal signifies the applicant's agreement that their proposal and the content thereof are valid for ninety (90) calendar days following the submission deadline and will become part of the contract that is negotiated between Rowan County and the successful applicant. All prices submitted with the proposal shall remain in effect for the ninety (90) day period.

Contracts funded with federal grant funds must be procured in a manner that conforms with all applicable Federal laws, policies, and standards.

Insurance requirements are listed in the document and will be required only from the awarded applicant before entering into contract with Rowan County.

Once the RFP is public all questions related to the RFP shall be directed to the Purchasing Director. Any contact related to the RFP with County Staff and/or Board of Commissioners will be prohibited and cause for rejection.

Rowan County reserves the right to award and/or reject any and/or all proposals and waive any technicalities or irregularities. For complete details, consult the RFP.

This is the 26<sup>th</sup> day of October 2025.

**Rowan County** 

By: Jody Farrow-Bennett

I. M. Janon-Bernett

Rowan County Director of Purchasing and Contract Administration

# **Table of Contents**

REQUE	ST FOR PRO	OPOSALS	1	
NOTIC	E TO CONTI	RACTOR	2	
1.		Section 1: Introduction & General Instructions	4	
	1.1.	Intent of Request for Proposal	4	
	1.2.	Important Dates	4	
	1.2.1.	Issue Date: Sunday, October 19, 2025	4	
2.		Section 2: proposal Submission	4	
	2.1.	Submission of Proposal	4	
	2.2.	Request for Clarification	5	
	2.3.	Errors and Omissions	5	
	2.4.	Signed Proposal Considered an Offer	5	
	2.5.	Insurance Coverage	5	
	2.6.	ADA Compliance	6	
	2.7.	Conflict of Interest	6	
3.		Section 3: Evaluation of proposals	6	
	3.1.	Evaluation Criteria	6	
	3.2.	Oral Presentations	7	
	3.3.	Liquidated Damages	7	
	3.4.	Pricing	7	
	3.5.	Final Selection	7	
	3.6.	Required Information		
4.		Section 4: Agreement & General Conditions	7	
	4.1.	Timeline to Execute Contract	7	
	4.2.	Availability of Funds	8	
	4.3.	Non-Discrimination	8	
	4.4.	Minority Participation	8	
	4.5.	Collusive Bidding	8	
	4.6.	General Indemnity	8	
	4.7.	Warranty	8	
	4.8.	References		
	4.9.	Termination	9	
5.		Section 5: Scope of Work	10	
	5.1.	Equipment Safety Requirements	10	
	5.2.	Proposal to Include the Following:	10	
	5.3.	Minimum Equipment Requirements:		
	5.4.	Proposal Requirements:		
6.		Section 6: Applicant Reference Sheet		
7.		Section 7: Proposal Response Form		

### 1. Section 1: Introduction & General Instructions

### 1.1. Intent of Request for Proposal

The purpose and intent of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is seeking proposals from qualified firms to design, engineer, fabricate two fully electric 1/3 scale replicas of a mid-to-late 1800s-style locomotive (preferably a 4-2-4 wheel configuration) with three passenger coaches each (full train is to contain one ADA coach with ramp), install equipment, provide warranty and possibly provide ongoing maintenance support with the Dan Nicholas Park amusement attraction equipment and infrastructure located in Rowan County, North Carolina. The train will operate on a G24 scale track and serve as a public attraction at Dan Nicholas Park.

- a. This Document
- b. Scope of Work
- c. Applicant Information Sheet
- d. Proposal Response Form

### 1.2. <u>Important Dates</u>

1.2.1. Issue Date: Sunday, October 26, 2025

1.2.2. Deadline for written questions:
 1.2.3. Deadline for Submitting Proposals:
 Friday, November 7, 2025, at 5:00 PM ET
 Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET

### 2. Section 2: proposal Submission

### 2.1. Submission of Proposal

Proposals must be presented on the **Proposal Response Form** in a sealed envelope. Submit **one (1)** hard copy and **One (1)** electronic submittal in .pdf format using software such as Adobe, CutePDF or PDF Writer, to be utilized for ADA required public information.

- Electronic deliveries: <a href="mailto:jody.farrow-bennett@rowancountnc.gov">jody.farrow-bennett@rowancountnc.gov</a>
- Paper Deliveries -mailings/hand-deliveries:

Rowan County Purchasing Department Attn: Jody Farrow-Bennett, Purchasing Director 130 West Innes Street, Suite 31 Salisbury, NC 28144

The package shall be sealed and plainly marked "RFP 2025-016 Dan Nicholas Park Train".

Applicant must submit one original sealed proposal.

No responsibility shall be attached to Rowan County (the County) for the premature opening of any proposal not properly addressed or identified.

This will be a public opening. Once proposal is awarded all submitters will receive notification.

Sealed Proposals are due on Monday Friday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET; opening will be held in the J. Newton Cohen, Sr. Administration Building at 130 West Innes Street, Conference Room 101, Salisbury, North Carolina. Failure to submit a Proposal to an authorized County Employee by this deadline will disqualify the Applicant from consideration in this project.

Rowan County 2026-016

Date Due: Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET

### 2.2. Request for Clarification

The County will not be bound by or be responsible for any interpretations or conclusions drawn from this RFP. All questions or requests for clarification or additional information must be submitted in writing no later than 5:00 pm on Friday, November 7, 2025, at 5:00 PM ET. These written questions or requests must be submitted to Jody Farrow-Bennett, Purchasing Director, by mail or e-mail. Any questions the County feels are pertinent to all interested applicants will be delivered to all participating applicants as an addendum to this RFP. All addendums will be posted on the County website <a href="https://www.rowancountync.gov/675/Purchasing">https://www.rowancountync.gov/675/Purchasing</a> and it is the responsibility of the Applicants to check for any addendums. The addenda for clarification will be posted by 5pm Monday, November 10, 2025.

In addition, the County assumes no responsibility for conclusions or interpretations derived from technical and background information presented in this RFP or otherwise distributed or made available during this procurement process. The County will not be bound by or be responsible for any explanation, interpretation, or conclusions of this RFP or any documents provided by the County, other than those given in writing by the County, through the issuance of an addenda. It is the full responsibility of the Applicants to thoroughly investigate the needs/requirements of the County not necessarily assumed in this RFP.

### 2.3. Errors and Omissions

The Applicant shall not take advantage of any errors or omissions in this RFP and shall promptly notify the County of any omissions or errors found in this document.

### 2.4. Signed Proposal Considered an Offer

Receipt of a signed proposal shall be considered an offer on the part of the Applicant. The terms, conditions, and specifications of this RFP will become part of the contract if the proposal shall be deemed approved and accepted by the County. In the event of a default on the part of the applicant after acceptance by the County, the County may take such action as it deems appropriate, including legal action for damages or specific performance.

### 2.5. <u>Insurance Coverage</u>

The Applicants shall not commence work under this contract until all insurance required under this section has been obtained. The Applicants shall not allow any subcontractor to commence on work that has been subcontracted until similar insurance has been obtained by the subcontractor. Also, the Applicants agrees that once awarded and during the term of this contract, the Applicants, at their sole cost and expense, shall provide commercial insurance of such type and with such terms and limits as may be reasonably associated with the contract. At a minimum, the Applicants shall provide and maintain the following coverage and limits:

### 2.5.1.WORKER'S COMPENSATION

Worker's compensation insurance as required by North Carolina law to cover all the Provider's employees engaged in any work under the Agreement. Workers' Compensation in the minimum amount of \$500,000 employer's liability. A Certificate of Insurance shall be issued confirming the above coverage. The Certificate must include a clause obligating the Insurer to give thirty (30) days prior notice in the event of cancellation of or major change in insurance.

### 2.5.2.COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY

The applicant shall maintain Comprehensive General Liability coverage in amounts not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence / \$2,000,000 aggregate. This Certificate must also include a clause obligating the insurer to give thirty (30) days prior notice in the event of cancellation of or major change in insurance and **name the County** as an additional insured.

This coverage must include:

- 1. Blanket contractual coverage for the liability assumed by the contractor under the indemnity provision of the contract involved. Such certificate must specifically state that the contractor is insured, and it must be signed by the insurance company, not the agent or broker.
- 2. Contractor's protective coverage for his subcontractors.

### 2.5.3. COMPREHENSIVE AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

The applicant shall maintain Comprehensive Automobile Liability covering all owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in connection with this Agreement. The minimum combined single limit shall be \$1,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage; and \$1,000,000 uninsured/underinsured motorist coverage. A Certificate of Insurance shall be issued confirming this coverage. The Certificate must include a clause obligating the insurer to give thirty (30) days prior notice in the event of cancellation of or major change in the insurance.

Any exceptions must be agreed upon by the County.

This insurance shall have been issued by a Company rated "A+" as reported in the current edition of Best's Key Rating Guide, published by Alfred M. Best Company, Inc.

### 2.6. ADA Compliance

All applicants of Rowan County must ensure their products and services are available to individuals with disabilities, in line with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), by April 2026. For digital accessibility, applicants should comply with WCAG 2.1 AA standards, which include making digital content perceivable, operable, understandable, and robust for users with disabilities. Digital offerings must be compatible with assistive technologies like screen readers, braille displays, and voice recognition software. Applicants must provide reasonable modifications to their products and services to accommodate individuals with disabilities unless doing so would cause undue hardship or fundamentally alter the nature of the service. Applicants must ensure effective communication with individuals with disabilities, which may include providing auxiliary aids and services such as accessible electronic documents, captions for videos, and alternative text for images. Failure to meet these requirements may result in termination of the contract.

### 2.7. Conflict of Interest

All Applicants must disclose in writing with their proposal the name of any owner, officer, director, or agent who is also an employee of the County. All Applicants must also disclose in writing with their proposal the name of any employee of the County who owns, directly or indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the Applicants' firm or any of its branches or subsidiaries. By submitting a proposal, the Applicants certifies that there is no relationship between the Applicants and any person or entity which is, or gives the appearance of, a conflict of interest related to this RFP or project.

### 3. Section 3: Evaluation of proposals

### 3.1. Evaluation Criteria

Price will be a major consideration in the County's evaluation criteria, but it will not be the only determining factor in our evaluation. The proposals will be evaluated on a "best overall value" basis including, but not limited to, pricing, experience, references, quality, performance, and the applicant's ability to adhere to all conditions and requirements of the specifications outlined in this RFP. The applicant's ability to provide a team of skilled, trained employees, maintenance costs, and the applicant's experience with similar projects will also be considered in the County's evaluation of the proposals submitted.

Evaluation criteria (1-5 scale)

- a. 15% Cost
- b. 30% Experience

Rowan County 2026-016

Date Due: Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET

- c. 30% Service, Reliability, & History
- d. 10% Availability
- e. 15% References (Local/NC)

### 3.2. Oral Presentations

During the evaluation process, the County may, at its discretion, request anyone or all applicants to make oral presentations for the purpose of clarification or to amplify the materials presented in any part of the proposal. However, applicants are cautioned that the County is not required to request clarification; therefore, all proposals should be complete and reflect the most favorable terms available from the applicant. Not all applicants may be asked to make such oral presentations.

### 3.3. <u>Liquidated Damages</u>

Liquidated Damages shall be assessed and levied against each Prime Contractor not attaining substantial completion of the contractual work in the amount of time indicated in their response. The damage amount applicable to each Contractor shall be as listed below and shall begin the day following the scheduled date of substantial completion (plus any written, approved extensions) and continue until final acceptance is obtained.

Each day following the intended substantial completion date for work not found substantially complete will be subject to damage assessment at the following rate:

\$150.00 per calendar day.

### 3.4. Pricing

Submission of any bid signifies the Bidder's agreement that its bid and the contents thereof are valid for ninety (90) calendar days following the submission deadline and will become part of the contract that is negotiated between the County and the successful Bidder. All prices submitted with the bid shall remain in effect for the ninety (90) day period.

### 3.5. Final Selection

Proposals are due no later than Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET. The County will review the proposals and advise finalists. A recommendation will be made by December 1, 2025. Oral interviews, if deemed necessary, will be scheduled for the week of opening. The County plans to contract with one applicant before the end of 2025. Dates are subject to change without prior notice.

The right is reserved to accept the response that the County determines to be in the best interest of the County and the employees. The County reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals.

### 3.6. Required Information

The following information must be included in the bid:

- Applicable licensure. (Applicant Information Sheet)
- Warranty on above goods and services. (Proposal Response Form)
- Proposals are to be in the form of a proposed contract signed by the bidder. (Proposal Response Form)
- Proposed days to complete (Proposal Response Form)

### 4. Section 4: Agreement & General Conditions

### 4.1. <u>Timeline to Execute Contract</u>

As time is of the essence, the applicant is required to begin and/or commence the work to be performed under this contract within the time specified on the proposal Form. Failure by the applicant to begin and/or complete

the work within the contract time shall be assessed as a penalty for each day of overrun. The applicant hereby agrees to execute this contract and that said charges are considered a just and reasonable compensation to the County and said charges shall be deducted from payment.

### 4.2. Availability of Funds

A contract for this project will be awarded and deemed binding only to the extent of appropriated funds for the purpose set forth in this RFP.

### 4.3. Non-Discrimination

The applicant shall not discriminate against any individuals and will take proactive measures to assure compliance with all Federal and State requirements concerning fair employment, employment of people with disabilities, and concerning the treatment of all employees without regard to discrimination based upon age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or disability.

### 4.4. Minority Participation

Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-48, 143-128.4 and Executive Order #13, Rowan County invites and encourages participation in this Request for proposals by businesses owned by minorities, women, disabled, disabled business enterprises, and non-profit work centers for the blind and severely disabled. Additional information may be found at http://www.doa.nc.gov/hub.

### 4.5. Collusive Bidding

By executing and submitting their proposal, the applicant certifies that this proposal is made without reference to any other proposal and without any agreement, understanding, collusion or combination with any other person in reference to such proposal.

### 4.6. General Indemnity

The applicant shall save and hold harmless, protect, defend and indemnify the County (including the County Manager, the Board of Commissioners, as well as Rowan County officers, agents and employees) from and against any demand, claim, suit, loss, expense or damage which may be asserted against any of them in their official or individual capacities by reason of any alleged damage to property, or injury to, or death of, any person arising out of, or in any way related to, any action or inaction of the applicant (including its officers, agents and employees) in the performance or intended performance of this contract, or the maintenance of any facility, or the operation of any program, which is the subject of, or is related to, the performance of this contract. The obligations of the applicant pursuant to this paragraph shall not be limited in any way by any limitation in the amount or type of proceeds, damages, compensation or benefits payable under any policy of insurance or self-insurance maintained by, or for the use and benefit of, the applicant. As an integral part of this contract, the applicant agrees to purchase and maintain, during the life of this contract, contractual liability insurance in the amount required in the general liability insurance requirements and to furnish proper evidence thereof with the County named as an additional insured.

### 4.7. Warranty

Applicants should provide a minimum one-year warranty for all materials and workmanship.

### 4.8. References

Please provide a list of four verifiable client references of similar scope and industry, all of whom are able to comment on your organization's relevant experience. This list should include at least three active client references that are similar in nature and size to Rowan County. Please include company name, contact name, telephone number and size of company's workforce. It is the applicant's responsibility to provide valid reference information, and the County reserves the right to use reference checks in its evaluation of proposals.

The County may request additional evidence of the Applicant's experience, qualifications, ability, products, service facilities and financial standing for which the Applicant shall be prepared to provide to the County, if required.

### 4.9. <u>Termination</u>

### 4.19.1. Termination For Cause

The County reserves the right to terminate this contract at any time for cause. The violation of any provision or condition contained in this contract, or the refusal, failure, or inability to carry out any provisions of this contract shall constitute sufficient cause to terminate this contract for cause. Should the County elect to terminate this contract for cause, the County will notify the applicant in writing and shall specify the cause for termination and the date that such termination shall be effective. Immediate dismissals may be executed if deemed necessary by the County.

### If the applicant:

- Fails to begin the work under the contract within the time specified.
- Fails to perform the work with sufficient workers and equipment, or with sufficient materials to ensure the prompt completion of the contracted work.
- Performs the work unsuitably.
- Discontinues the prosecution of the work.
- Becomes insolvent, declares bankruptcy, commits any act of bankruptcy, allows any final
  judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for a period of forty-eight (48) hours, or shall make an
  assignment for the benefit of creditors.
- Shall not carry on the work in an acceptable manner from any other cause whatsoever.

The County shall give notice in writing to the applicant of such delay, neglect, or default, specifying the same.

If the applicant, within a period of ten (10) days after such notice, shall not proceed in accordance therewith, then the County shall, upon written certification of the fact of such delay, neglect or default, and the applicant's failure to comply with such notice, have full power and authority, without violating the contract, to take the prosecution of the work out of the hands of the applicant, to appropriate or use any or all materials and equipment on the grounds as may be suitable and acceptable, and may enter into an agreement for the completion of the contract according to the terms and provisions thereof, or use such other methods as, in its opinion, shall be required for the completion of this contract in an acceptable manner.

All costs and charges incurred by the County, together with the costs of completing the work under the contract, shall be deducted from any monies due or which may become due to the Contractor. In case the expense so incurred by the County shall be less than the sum which would have been payable under the contract, if the contract had been completed by the applicant, then the applicant shall be entitled to receive the difference, and in case such expense shall exceed the sum which would have been payable under the contract, then the applicant shall be liable and shall pay to the County the amount of said excess.

### 4.19.1. <u>Termination for Convenience</u>

If the County shall determine that it is in the County's best interest, the County shall notify the applicant to terminate the work within seven (7) days. In such event, the applicant shall be entitled to compensation for all work properly executed and any expenses incurred in terminating the contract.

No claim shall be made by the applicant for any loss of anticipated profits because of any alteration, change or termination, or by reason of any variation between the approximate quantities and the quantity of work as done.

Rowan County 2026-016 Request for Proposals Date Due: Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET Dan Nicholas Park Train

### 5. Section 5: Scope of Work

Rowan County is seeking services from a qualified firm to design, engineer, and fabricate two (2) fully electric 1/3 scale replicas of a mid-to-late 1800s-style locomotive (preferably a 4-2-4 wheel configuration) and three (3) passenger coaches (each with full train containing one ADA coach with ramp). The train will operate on a G24 scale track and serve as a public attraction at Dan Nicholas Park. The selected applicant will be responsible for:

### **5.1. Equipment Safety Requirements**

- Safety and accessibility features for public use.
- Ride must meet the following standards:
  - O ASTM International; F2291~Standard Practice for Design of Amusement Rides, F1193~Standard Practice for Amusement Ride and Device Manufacturer Quality Assurance Program and Manufacturing Requirements, F2137~Standard Practice for Measuring the Dynamic Characteristics of Amusement Rides and Devices, F698~Standard Specification for Physical Information to be Provided for Amusement Rides and Devices, F747~Standard Terminology Relating to Amusement Rides and Devices, F770~Standard Practice for Operation Procedures of Amusement Rides and Devices, F893~Standard Guide for Inspection of Amusement Rides and Devices

### 5.2. Proposal to Include the Following:

- Cost of two (2) full trains offering ADA accessibility. Each Train containing an electric engine and three (3) coaches. One of the three coaches is to be ADA accessibility. Trains must be itemized and priced separately.
- Cost for public announce and sound effects system; itemized.
- Cost for in-station charging system; itemized.
- Cost for WARRANTY and parts packages/options with minimum package at two (2) years and max package option at 10 years; itemized.
- Additional cost for any minimum requirements listed below; itemized.
- Renderings or pictures of locomotives and coaches.
- Minimum one (1) year warranty; extended warranty options.
- Delivery of both complete trains to Dan Nicholas Park in Salisbury, NC.
- Apply for and obtain any required permits.

### 5.3. Minimum Equipment Requirements:

- A. Locomotive body at 1/3 scale in an 1880's locomotive, preferably a 4-2-4 design, with cab, cow catcher, false boiler, false whistle, engine hood, tender, false drive wheels, sand tank, bell, LED headlight, journal box and wheels, trucks, drive and brakes.
- B. Locomotive not to exceed 6900 lbs.
- C. Keyed start switch.
- D. Locomotive will be trimmed in brass or chrome depending on colors available and/or selection. Options on livery design if available for potential sponsors.
- E. Motors minimum multiple 20 HP motors, controlled by AC 35 controller which drive the wheels.
- F. Charged by on-board charging system via a shore power or automatic charging station.
- G. Train manufactured scale required to operate on newly installed G24 tracks.
- H. Rail tracks are to be 24" gauge wheelbase on 20 lbs. rail.
- Main battery Preferably 102 VDC Lithium Iron Phosphate battery, controlled by BMS.
- J. Electrical system 220 VAC power distribution, 102 VDC power distribution, AC 35 motor controllers,12 VDC
   & 24 VDC power distribution, 24 VDC PLC, throttle, sound EFC, and PA systems.
- K. Programmable positioning speed control.
- L. Battery charger supply 220/120VAC single phase, 70 amps.

Date Due: Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET

- M. Train Power requirements 220V single phase, 110 amps.
- N. Thermal management system.
- O. Regenerative motor braking required.
- P. Redundant air brakes on all wheels, locomotive and passenger cars included. Brakes must apply in case of loss of air supply.
- Q. Mechanical driveline parking/emergency brake.
- R. Automatic Parking brake
- S. Maximum height of locomotive or passenger cars must not exceed 6 feet 10 inches.
- T. PA system with solid state amplifier controls and microphone installed in locomotive.
- U. LED dome lights in all coaches; ability to turn on/off.
- V. 2 ADA compliant coaches with wheelchair ramps one per complete train.
- W. 2 sets of three coaches that are front, middle, and rear with rear coach having working tail lights.
- X. All passenger coaches except ADA compliant coach must have a minimum of seven (7) seats with each seat able to accommodate two (2) adults and one (1) child.
- Y. Maximum empty weight of passenger coaches is 3300 lbs.
- Z. Coaches must have solid fiberglass top.
- AA. Left or right entrance seat enclosure
- BB. Paint scheme will be selected from bidder supplied color chart, including any glossy, metallic, matte color options.
- CC. Training for operations and maintenance staff by experienced customer service tech.
- DD. Wheel lubrication/friction modifier kit.
- EE. Engine and coaches must be delivered by no later than May 21, 2026

### 5.4. Proposal Requirements:

The proposal should provide a concise description of the company's capability to complete the required design, plans, specifications, cost, contract documents, and production for the engine and coaches. IT must contain the following:

- Company name, address, telephone number and point of contact.
- Timeline for this project and many other projects currently being undertaken. Products to be delivered in mid-summer of 2026, unless otherwise noted in the proposal regarding factors impacting manufacturing (parts availability, labor, etc.) and must include in the anticipated delivery date.
- Proposal should include renderings or drawings of design/concept in red, blue, grey, and green with chrome
  or brass trim at the discretion of the designer that best matches train base color. Provide any information
  on the ability for optional custom livery options in case of sponsorships being provided to Rowan County
  during funding process.
- Provide three (3) color copies of the proposal and a digital copy of the proposal.
- Attach any photos or graphic rendering associated with design.
- Include a minimum of three (3) references, with pictures, similar in scope and preferably in North Carolina.

Rowan County 2026-016
Date Due: Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET

6. Section 6: Applicant Reference Sheet

Request for Proposals Dan Nicholas Park Train

1.	COMPANY NAME							
2.	OWNER OF COMPANY							
3.	NUMBER OF YEARS IN BUSINESS							
4.	NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED ON REGULAR BASIS							
	WHO WILL BE THE COUNTY'S CONTACT PERSON IN THE EVENT YOUR FIRM IS AWARED THE CONTRACT.							
	CONTACT							
	TELEPHONE							
	EMAIL							
6.	PLEASE LIST FOUR (4) REFERENCES OF BUSINESSES (NOT HOMES) FOR WHICH YOU HAVE PROVIDED THIS KIND OF SERVICES. PREFER ONE FROM A MUNICIPALITY, COUNTY GOVERNMENT OR PUBLIC AGANCY DURING THE PAST FIVE YEARS.							
	REFERENCE NO. 1							
	NAME & TITLE:							
	AGENCY:							
	ADDRESS:							
	TELEPHONE:							
	NATURE OF ASSOCIATION:							
	EMAIL:							
	REFERENCE NO. 2 NAME & TITLE:							
	AGENCY:							
	ADDRESS:							
	TELEPHONE:							
	NATURE OF ASSOCIATION:							
	EMAIL:							
	REFERENCE NO. 3 NAME & TITLE:							
	AGENCY:							
	ADDRESS:							
	TELEPHONE:							
	NATURE OF ASSOCIATION:							
	EMAIL:							

<sup>\*</sup>This page must be completed and submitted as part of the proposal.

### 7. Section 7: Proposal Response Form

The undersigned proposes and agrees that if this proposal is accepted to contract with Rowan County, North Carolina for the furnishing of all equipment and labor necessary to complete the scope of work described in the Request for Proposal documents in full and complete accordance with specifications and contract documents, and to the full and entire satisfaction of Rowan County, North Carolina for the prices provided below. Pursuant to the provisions of NC G.S. 143-54 under penalty of perjury, the signer of the proposal certifies that this proposal has not been arrived at collusively or otherwise in violation of Federal or North Carolina antitrust laws.

The following addenda	are acknowledged:		dated			
			dated			
COMPANY NAME			FEDERAL ID#			
STREET ADDRESS	РО ВОХ	<	CITY S	TATE	ZIP	
TELEPHONE #	FAX #		DAYS TO COMPLETE			
**All freight cost must transport for the new c		ng	WARRANTY ON MATERIALS:			
			WARRANTY ON WORKMANSHIP:  WARRANTY ON PAINT/BODYWORK:			
1800's Style Locomotive	\$	ea.	1 <sup>St</sup> Full Set Cost:			
1st Passenger Coach - ADA	\$	ea.	& ESTIMATED DELIVERY DATE:			
2 <sup>nd</sup> Passenger Coach	\$	ea.	2 <sup>nd</sup> Full Set Cost:			
3 <sup>rd</sup> Passenger Coach	\$	ea.	& ESTIMATED DELIVERY DATE:			
			IF ORDERED BY:			
			Total of the Two	\$		
SIGNATURE		DATE	TOTAL BID*	\$		
SIGNATORY'S NAME (pri			*Sum quoted includes all applicable taxes, bonds, permits, licenses, insurance cost, if any, and all other cost incidental			
SIGNATORY'S TITLE		(printed)	_	to ti	ne resultant contract.	

<sup>\*</sup>This page must be completed and submitted as part of the proposal.